
Sherwood Planning Conrmission Meeting

Date

ú Meeting Packet lrbnC,

â Approved Minutes Date Approved

ú Request to Speak Forms

Documents submitted at meeting

o1'o t c

+o

(]J t t-¿

a



BY

RECEIVED

StLu;,'H¿ ql rc
l*b aþ¡/o-t

AAÑ +t^!" sift

i

h/,
Fñî¡ñ¡¡i¡ñffi

JUN 2 6 2007

&Qa.

Ho*< q! thi:'ltdatin Rivtr Ntìonall4lldliþ þìge

MAILED NOTICE . PUBLIC COMMENTS
Gomfort Suites Hotel and Gonference Center

sP 07-01/cuP 07-02

No comment.

We encourage approval of this request.

Please address the foll concerns should this app lication be

n

n

,r' owmg
rc.1ßlL q.hbn

'] ñ0
We encourage denial

0D efi
odthis

( er\/,4-r^\Vl/ú.

the

Please feel free to attach additional sheets as needed to complete your comments

Fnnmcrs Lr,t A, s{ìtßtrY *Sh", J0006 2ÈComments by:
Address: hrt Tel.:

Email:
(optional)
(optional)

00,CofY1
that you promptly

P

taruKp¿/

{oc L fr

iq*o

(ouln¿rs Lot t t5
The City of Sherwood ,"oJ$$

forward this notice to the purchaser if this notice is received.

Ø 7l*,,
fuoa
*çs ,^il di, Vt (NS 

.

ï
\ñø d'on'l r ;.lod

M 0u¡ h¡tr¡¿

Slnnuld be

ryitu +tu
ñncre,+ e t

]rl^t l.ws f qr*rvrq
r%ú(l,\,t,"oJ 

u#ffi I A

r lr1 tÍglVr, gIrearwu3

Iof eø

lrv,ck s
þn þa lÃhq r Q

3

t

Ç nnÅ bP

t¡0( trì

a,e" oJ,sa d, cor\ W A ,

Jwta,s, dunutr3



tr

É

x

H.ñ. { tlu'llaîl¡tir Nw Â!¿lío¿¡l H4/ffg ftrJÌrÁr

MAILED NOTICE - PUBLIC COMMENTS
Comfoñ Suites Hotel and Conference Genter

sP 07-01/GUP 07-02

No con:ment.

Vy'e encourage approval ofthis request.

Please address the following concerns should this application be approved:

Pleasefeelfree to attach additional sheets as needed to complete your comments-

Ì

ï
we bwtbliv;rc¡
C"lÇCil,ti rtYl"

We encourage denial of this request for the following reasons:

Comments by:
Address:

c) Date:
Tel.:
Email:

6lrtlaï
çl 7, ¿3 I 6 (optional)

(optional)SÅorir)ood . OÈ, t)ì lt O

Notice to mortgagee. lien holffi: The City of Sherwood requests that you promptly

forward this notice to the purchaser ifthis notice is received.

E +rr ( q 1n aUtciri hF( ili,l.e hf t.illltlr" rlcn ,ü,;, ¡l [l
':¡¡ rl{¡¡vI ilt



June 29,2007

To: Commissioners
Planning Department

RE: Proposed Comfort Suites

I attended the meeting on Tuesday, June 26,2007 regarding the Comfort
Inn. I spoke at the meeting regarding the fire access at the end of SW
Madeira Street continuing into the greenway.

During the discussion of the Commissioners and planning department
officials, they felt that there was not a fire access to the Madeira
development other than S'W Madeira Street. I want to bring to their
attention that there is another access, i.e. through SW Houston Street, off
Edy Road, then to SW Spratlin Street which connects with SW Madeira
Street. (Please see attached map.) I believe this to be a second fire access to
this neighborhood.

Donna Samuels
17166 SW Wisteria Place
Sherwood, OR 97t40

-"$ff
g'{



To:

From:

Throuqh:

Subiect:

Background:

Current:

Commission Meeting Date: July 24,2007
Agenda ltem: Hearing & Adoption

City of Sherwood Planning Commission

Gene Thomas, Civil Engineer

Tom Pessemier, City Engineer;

SANITARY MASTER PLAN UPDATE

The current Sanitary Master Plan was approved in '1990 and has guided City
development since its approval. However, the City has outgrown the current master plan.

ln addition, there have been several expansions to the City boundaries. Area 59 has now
been annexed into the City. Area 54/55 is within the urban growth boundary and will be

annexed to the City as planning is completed.

An updated Sanitary Master Plan is needed to evaluate existing and future system
conditions and to recommend appropriate improvements, rates and SDCs to support
these needs.

There was a public open house before the May 22"d Planning Commission Meeting, with
a work session following the open house.

A number of items have been updated or corrected since the draft document was
presented to the Commission. ln addition, the incomplete sections including the financial
study have been completed and included.

The Sanitary Master Plan is being submitted to the Planning Commission for a hearing
and recommendation for adoption.

Future Action: Subsequent to the recommendation, the Sanitary Master Plan will.be submitted to the
Sherwood City Councilfor a hearing and adoption at the August 7tn council session.
Based upon the approved master plan, the SDC methodology report will be completed
yet this year.

Once the master plan is adopted, staff will initiate a plan amendment to revise the
Comprehensive Plan as necessary.

Staff Report
SANITARY MASTER PLAN
July 24,2007



APPROVED
MINUTES

\



Cify of Sherwood, Oregon
Planning Commission Minutes

July 24,2007

Commission Members Present:
Chair Patrick Allen
Adrian Emery
Jean Lafayette
DanBalza
Todd Skelton

Staff:
Julia Hajduk, Planning Dept. Manager
Gene Thomas, P.E. - Engineering
Cynthia Butler, Dept. Program Coordinator

I

)

J

Commission Members Absent:
Matt Nolan

Council Liaison - Dave Grant

Call to Order/Roll Call - Cynthia Butler called roll. Matt Nolan was noted as absent.

Agenda Review - There were no changes to the agenda

Consent Agenda - Minutes from the June 26,2007 session were approved by vote
Yes-5 No-O Abstain-0

4. Announcements - Julia Hajduk said that the Planning Commission vacancy interviews
with candidates are nearly complete. Recommendations will be forwarded to the Mayor and

Council President, Dave Grant for final selection. The Brookman Rd. Concept Plan is on

schedule, with the consultants drafting alternatives based on feedback from staff and the Steering
Committee. The next regular Brookman Rd. Steering Committee meeting is August 22,2007.
Julia recapped that an informal discussion with propefty owners in the Cedar Brook Way and

Hwy. 99 vicinity will occur on August 8tl'in the Community Room from 6:30PM-8PM, and will
be facilitated by Patrick Allen in an unofficial capacity. The discussion will invite
communication on common issues property owners have expressed in the past regarding
potential development of their properlies.

JeanLafayette asked for an update on the potential fee-in-lieu process Julia has been discussing
with the Finance Department. Julia said that discussions have been successful. Julia is drafting a

policy memo and will meet again with Engineering and Public Works to coordinate details.
Discussions with Finance continue on how funds would be distributed. Julia said she would
provide another update at the next regular Planning Commission session.

5. Community Comments - Chair Allen asked if there were any community comments.

There were none.

6. Old Business -
A. SP 07-01; CUP 07-03 - Comfort Suites Hotel and Conference Center;

continued from the June26,2007 hearing for Planning Commission deliberation.

Chair Allen asked Julia if the Public Hearings Disclosure Statement was required to be read.

1

Planning Commission Meeting
Iuly 24,2007 Minutes



Julia said it did not, and recapped that the public record was closed at the last session on June 26,

2001 ar'.dno new testimony should be received.

Chair Allen asked Cornmissioners if there was any exparlé contact, bias or conflicts of interest to

disclose since the last session on this application. There was none.

Chair Allen opened discussion on SP 07-01 & CUP 0l-03, and asked Julia for a recap

Julia Hajduk recapped that Project Manager, Heather Austin was on maternity leave and refened

to Heather's addendum staff report that was included packet materials for the meeting, dated July

1l ,2001 . Julia said the addendum repofi included condition modifications and responses to

public comments. Julia concluded that staff recommends approval of the application with
conditions as modified in the addendum staff report.

JeanLafayette asked Julia to clarify the location in the report regarding Hwy. 99 access at the

property line, as previously required by ODOT. Jean said she was uncomfortable that the

revised plans did not show the road access from Hwy. 99 atthe property line. Julia responded

that staff is recommending revising this Condition in D-4. It was noted that there were two D-4

conditions appearing in the addend-um report. Julia clarified the 2"d D-4 addressed the access

question and added that she received an email from ODOT today that they will most likely not
require the shared access along the property line from Hwy. 99. Julia added that the location
shown by the applicant for the access will likely be approved by ODOT.

Chair Allen said that the Commission cannot consider new testimony at this juncture.

Julia agreed, but said that the condition says "or verification from ODOT will address it", either

to move the access so that it is on the property line required by ODOT, or provide verification by
ODOT that it is not required.

Adrian Emery said that if ODOT agrees to the applicant's access as shown, it is likely that in the

future that there will be 2 driveways or access points off of Hwy. 99 located close together.

Julia said that this is a potential outcome, but it is not certain what will happen in the future on

the properly.

Chair Allen said that this leaves the Commission in a position to accept multiple driveways off of
Hwy.99.

Adrian agreed, and said that this was not what ODOT has led Sherwood to believe over the years

on other applications. Adrian asked Julia if the Commission could place a condition that when

the billboard is gone, in approximately 4 years, that the access driveways merge.

Julia said that is a call for ODOT to make.

DanBalzasaid that he thought ODOT required a minimum distance between driveways, but

could not recall the number.

Adrian added that this could be waived by ODOT if they choose.

Planning Cornmission Meeting
July 24,2007 Minutes

2



Jean said that under the cument view each site has access, but that purpose of having joint access

is so that both properties have access without creating two driveways on Hwy. 99.

Chair Allen asked Julia if the Com'mission was pre-empted on this issue.

Julia said that ODOT does direct where access can be located on Hwy. 99, anð added that

Condition D-4 also requires, "in addition submit a recorded crossover access easement for the

benefit of Tax Lot 1200 over the ingress and egress to Hwy. 99 onthis property. Julia said that it
is possible that where the access is currently proposed, could be deemed in the future by ODOT

as access for the adjacent property. Julia reiterated that it is unknown when the adjacent properly

will develop or propose, and how ODOT will respond.

Chair Allen.suggested coming back to this topic, and asked Commissioners if there were any

concerns with changes made to remaining conditions such as; trash storage, the water control

facility, location and design of hardscape, and the emergency access road.

JeanLafayette discussed the hardscape and said that the landscaping plans did not show any

hardscape as discussed at the last session. Patrick asked Julia if no new plans were submitted

showing the hardscape. Julia said that the applicant's plans show some additional and the staff
report has been updated. Jean asked if hardscape was still planned within the setback. Julia

conf,rrmed the hardscape would be within the 25-foot visual corridor. Jean stated that it would be

beneficial to be able to see what the planned corridor would look like prior to making a decision.

Chair Allen confirmed that the Commission has 2 issues so far to continue deliberation; the Hwy.

99 access issue and the hardscape visual corridor. Chair Allen asked if there were any other

outstanding issues for deliberation. Jean added the topic of the bridge that would go over the

bioswale, if planned in this manner.

Chair Allen suggested discussing the hardscape and whether or not this should be used in the

visual corridor. Julia stated that typically the visual corridor includes some lawn, shrubs, and

trees. Jean said that hardscape could include chairs and benches, a good transition from Hwy.

99. Commissioners agreed.

Chair Allen recommended discussing the crossing of the bioswale to the path. Julia said that the

pedestrian path and bioswale is currently on the plans, and if the applicant is going to follow this

plan it will require a bridge. Julia concluded that this does not require a condition, as this will be

an existing requirement of the design.

Chair Allen stated that he would like the record to show that the Commission clearly expects a

bridge that crosses the bioswale. Julia confirmed.

Chair Allen referred back to the Hwy. 99 access issue for discussion. Patrick recapped Adrian's
proposal to further condition that when the billboard is removed, joint access be required. Jean

said that means whoever develops first gets the advantage of not cornplying with the City traffic

stanciards, thereby creating inconsistency.

Jean said that the applicant should be required to comply with ODOT for a shared driveway.

Adrian clarified that ODOT is no longer requiring a shared driveway access. Patrick said that the

Commission cannot consider the latest communication fiorn ODOT into the record. Jean agreed.

Planning Cornrnission Meeting
Iuly 24,2007 Minutes

3



Patrick asked Commissioners to consider the language that says if ODOT decides differently, it
is OK. Patrick,said that he was uncomfortable with ODOT changing decisions randomly that

creates multiple access points in future development. Jean said that they should make a long

tenn decision that makes sense for the City.

Patrick asked Julia if there was anything in the TSP regarding access on Hwy. 99. Julia said not

directly, but reiterated that the condition was to comply with ODOT standards and if it no longer

becomes necessary for the applicant to comply with ODOT standards, there needs to be specific

findings by the Commission to support that. Julia referenced the Code that defers back to ODOT

standards. Discussion ensued on various options for access with or without the billboard in
place.

Julia addressed the previous discussion on receiving a waiver from ODOT on the access, and

said that the Code allows ODOT to change their decision in the permitting process.

Chair Allen asked Commissioners if there was a consensus to make findings to support a

requirement that the applicant meet the original ODOT standards. Adrian said that he agreed,

but was concerned the Commission would not be able to make fìndings to support it. Patrick
said that the Code language on shared access provides support.

Patrick asked Julia to clarify if the language "on the property line" is from ODOT standards, and

"encouraging shared access by one of the potential means", somes from the City Code. Julia
confirmed. Patrick said the hesitancy is that future development further down the Hwy. at some

point will develop and the access point will be too far apart to share, creating the multiple access

points.

Jean said that the Commission supports ODOT in creating shared access opporlunities in
compliance with the City Code, and ODOT's goal of minimizing driveways on Hwy. 99.

Chair Allen asked if Commissioners agreed. Commissioners confirmed.

Julia asked Commissioners to confirm they wanted to change Condition D-4 and if so, how they
propose to change it. Patrick confirmed.

Jean referred to Code Section 16.108.050, and summarized, "Private ingress or egress from Hwy
99 shall be minimized, considering existing alternatives such as shared or crossover access

agreements between properties, consolidated access points, or frontage or backage roads.

Patrick said that language in Condition D-4 should be stated to remove "or" from andlor, to read,

...."complies with City and ODOT standards. Patrick added revised findings would be that the

proposed cross-easement will not serve the goal of minimizing access, and on that basis, the

Commission requires shared access or access at the property line. Patrick asked Julia if the

language suited making findings. Julia confirmed. Patrick asked Commissioners if there was

consensus to approve the new language. Cornmissioners concurred'

JeanLafayette moved that the Planning Cornmission approve SP 07-01; CUP 0l-03, based on

the adoption of the staff reporl, findings of fact dated June 19, 2001, as supplemented on July
17tr', with exclusion of the change to ConditionD-4,public testimony, staff recommendations,

agency comments, applicant comments and conditions as revised.

4
Planning Comrnission Meeting
July 24,2007 Minutes



Adrian Emery seconded

Chair Allen asked if there was any further discussion on the motion. There was none. Vote was

taken:
Yes-5 No-O Abstain-O

Motion carried

< 5-minute break was taken >

B. SP 07-04; MLP 07-04; LLA 07-01; CUP 07-01 - Area 59 Schools:
Chair Allen recapped that the Rasmussen septic issue, the 4-way stop at the intersection'of Edy
Rd. and Borchers, and the tennis courts located on the Rychlick properly as issues for
deliberation. Patrick asked for feedback on any other issues remaining for deliberation. There

were none presented.

Chair Allen recommended beginning with the 4-way stop at the intersection of Edy Rd. and

Borchers. Patrick recapped that the School District, Staff and the City Attorney confitm that the

traffic analysis provides support to the recommendation for a 4-way stop. Patrick added that if
the Commission disagrees, it is necessary to support the decision with findings, which
Commissioners agreed was not possible.

Jean expressed confusion over Condition G-3 and said that it appears it should be labeled as

Condition F-3. Jean said that the School District letter requests the condition to include the

requirement about a west bound turn lane on Edy Rd. and Borchers. Patrick said this is not in
the revised conditions, and it is G-3. Julia confirmed that it is Condition G-3. Chair Allen asked

if there was fuither discussion on the G-3 issue. There was none.

Chair Allen recapped that the ball fields located on the Rychlick property in terms of
condemnation is not an issue for the Commission to address, but the landscape buffering and

lighting in the staff report may be addressecl. Patrick asked if Commissioners thought that the

landscaping and lighting was adequate. Patrick said that the revised conditions require 6-foot
screening.

Jean referred to the ball fields at Snyder Park in regard to the screening and lighting. Jean asked

if the applicant would open to providing additional screening after the proposed 2O-foot tennis

courts and 6-foot screening are in place if it becomes evident more is needed for the neighboring
property. Patrick stated that the existing buffer and screening appears adequate, and if neighbors

discover an issue in the future there are mechanisms in place for property owners to address

them. Commissioners agreed. Commissioners discussecl the 9PM timeline for lighting and

agreed with findings in the staff reporl.

Chair Allen opened discussion on the Rasmussen septic issue, Condition B-2, Items A-D, in the

staff reporl.

Julia said that Condition B-2, Items A-D is found in Exhibit O-1.

5

Planning Comrnission Meeting
July 24,2007 Minutes



Chair Allen recapped that in addition to a recomrnended condition from staff, the School District
has proposed a'change, and Mr. Rasmussen has also proposed a change. Julia reiterated that the
proposed changes recapped by Chair Allen were in the record, but that Exhibit O-1 primarily
outlines the School District's recomÍlended modification as presented at the last meeting.

Patrick asked Julia to clarify that Condition B-2 specifically says the applicant will connect the

existing house to the existing municipal sewer system, which reads more clear than in the past on

who is responsible for connecting to the sewer.

Julia said that it should read as Exhibit J provided previously.

Patrick Allen referred to the July 23'd letter from Miller Nash on behalf of the School District,
which says, "no grading shall occur within the delineated areas until the municipal sewer line is
connected and the septic system is abandoned." Patrick stated that this language was more
general.

Julia said the July 23d memo's recoÍrmended change is found under Condition B-2, Item C.

Patrick said that the bottom line is that if anything is done on the School District site disturbs the

Rasmussen septic system, the Rasmussen's will be required to abandon the septic system and

connect to the municipal sewer system, at the School District's expense.

Julia confirmed.

DanBalza clarified, "before any grading occurs". Chair Allen confirmed

Julia asked to clarify that it should read, "before any grading occurs in a way that would impact
the septic system." Chair Allen confirmed that the condition protects the Rasmussen's' to be

connected either to the septic or municipal sewer system.

Chair Allen asked if there was fuilher discussion on the septic sewer issue. There was none.

IeanLafayette moved to approve SP 07-04; CUP 07-01; MLP 07-04; and LLA 0l-01, Area 59

Schools based on the adoption of the staff report, findings of fact, public testimony, staff
recommendations, agency comments, applicant comments, and conditions as revised in Exhibit
o-1.

DanBalza seconded.

Chair Allen asked if there was any further discussion on the motion. There was none. Vote was

taken:
Yes-5 No-0 Abstain-O

Motion carried.

7. New Business - Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Public Hearing: Chair Allen opened the

public hearing at 8:06 PM. Gene Thomas, P.E. for the City of Sherwood, and the consultant

from Murray, Smith & Associates presented comments and offered to answer questions. Gene

recapped that there was a work session in June followed by an open house, and a draft of the

proposed plan has been on the City web site.

6
Planning Commission Meeting
July 24,2007 Minutes



Chair Allen noted that there were no public in attendance for public testimony, and closed the

public hearing at 8:15 PM.

Adrian Emery asked what was decided for the NW side of the Area 59 site. Gene responded that

the sewer line would be mounted under a pedestrian bridge.

Chair Allen asked if there were any further questions from the Commission. There were none.

Jean Lafayette moved to recommend to Council the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan based on the

adoption of the staff reporl, findings of fact, public testimony, staff recommendations, agency

comments, and applicant comments.

DanBalza seconded.

Chair Allen asked if there were any fuither comments on the motion. There were none. Vote

was taken:
Yes-5 No-0 Abstain-0

Motion carried.

8. Comments by Commission - Adrian said the I-5lHwy. 99 Connector task force

meetings are down to about 7 altematives, but it is a very slow process and may be 10 years

before a decision is made. DanBalza asked Julia what the plan was for the Snyder Park lighting.

Julia said that there was an application currently under review for a public hearing with the

Hearings Officer on August 6'l'. Julia said that Dan could view the file as a citizen and that

Michelle Miller is the project manager.

8. Next Meeting - August 28, 2007;No agenda items planned at this time. TBD whether

or not a session will be held. Dan Balza and Adrian Emery indicated that they will not be able to

attend on August 28tl'if there is a meeting.

9. Adjournment - Chair Allen adjourned the session at 8:20 PM'

End of Minutes.

7
Planning Commission Meeting
July 24,2007 Minutes


